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ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
AS AT JUNE 30, 2013

{Amounts in thousand)

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
Note 2013 2012
--------------------- RUpPeeg-rrwuin e remmanis
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 80,675,511 82,877,701
Intangible assets 5 156,029 161,555
Long term foans and advances 6 108,983 83,763
80,940,533 83,123,019
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 7 4,249,655 4,107,291
Stock-in-trade 8 1,678,678 1,687,072
Trade debts 9 882,808 1,046,091
Derivative financial instruments 18 26,084 545
Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments 10 231,377 385,150
Other receivables 11 46,444 61,038
Taxes recoverable 968,082 2,000,249
Short term investments 12 4,824,661 2,635,339
Cash and bank balances 13 2,609,454 2,449,168
15,517,253 14,381,943

TOTAL ASSETS

96,457,786

97,504,962




(Amounts in thousand)

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
Note 2013 2012
-------------------- Rupeess-rmmrmmmrmncnnenan
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14 12,228,000 10,728,000
Share premium 11,144 11,144
Hedging reserve 15 (222,600) (323,880)
Remeasurement of pest employment benefits 2,050 -
Unappropriated profit 6,808,120 5,382,763
6,588,714 5,070,027
Total Equity 18,826,714 15,798,027
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 16 54,764,180 48,481,626
Subordinated loan from Holding Company 17 3,000,000 3,000,000
Derivative financial instruments 18 543,141 487,869
Deferred liabilities 19 2,817,541 3,380,705
Retirement and other service benefits obligations 20 73,637 99,029
61,198,499 55,459,229
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21 6,458,007 7,957,173
Accrued interest / mark-up 22 1,613,653 1,788,282
Current portion of:
- borrowings 16 7,444 858 14,896,412
- other service benefits obligations 20 55,120 39,624
Short term borrowings 23 500,000 999,791
Derivative financial instruments 18 360,935 566,424
16,432,573 26,247,706
Total liabilities 77,631,072 81,706,935
Contingencies and Commitments 24
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 96,457,786 97,504,962

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousand except for earnings / (loss) per share)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other income

Other operating expenses
Finance cost

Profit / {loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit / (loss) for the period

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic

Earnings / (loss) per share - diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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28

29

30
31

32

33

Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unaudited
Quarter Quarter Half year Half year
ended ended ended ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees
10,802,709 9,601,787 20,518,305 12,804,464
(6,531,602) (5,992,789) (12,036,266) (8,295,888)
4,271,107 3,608,898 8,483,039 4,508,576
(765,596) {(730,017) (1,483,827) {1,050,881)
(148,312) {132,075) {301,508) (291,809)
3,357,199 2,746,906 6,697,704 3,165,886
140,192 74,747 291,105 163,138
(122,940) (46,242) (411,702) (110,129)
(2,320,808) (2,934,070) (4,524,905) (5,562,874)
(2,443,748) (2,980,312) (4,936,607) (5,673,003)
1,053,643 (158,659) 2,052,202 (2,343,979)
(274,605) (152,539) (626,845) 612,629
779,038 (311,198) 1,425,357 (1,731,350)
Restated Restated
0.68 (0.27) 1.25 (1.53)
0.68 (0.27) 1.25 {1:53)
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ENGROC FERTILIZERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousand)

Profit / (loss) for the period

Other comprehensive income-ltems potentially
re-classifiable to Profit and Loss Account

Hedging reserve - cash flow hedges

(Loss) / gain arising during the period

Less: Adjustment for amounts transferred to profit
and loss account

Less: Adjustment for amounts transferred fo initial

carrying amount of hedged items (Capital
work in progress)

Income tax (Deferred) relating to hedging reserve

ltems not potentially re-classifiable to Profit and Loss Account
Remeasurement of post employment bensfits obligation
Income tax (Deferred) relating to remeasurement of
post employment benefits obligation
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax

Total comprehensive income / {loss) for the period

Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unaudited
Quarter Quarter Half year Half year
ended ended ended ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees
779,038 (311,198) 1,425,357 (1,731,350)
(323,913) 151,203 (474,264) (228,339)
402,553 (97,814) 635,269 343,732
= 9,432 - 12,766
(30,897} (21,888) (59,725} (44,506)
47,743 40,833 101,280 82,653
3,108 - 3,106 -
(1,088) - (1,056) .
2,050 - 2,050 -
49,793 40,833 103,330 82,653
828,831 (270,365) 1,528,687 (1,648,697)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousand)

Employees Remeasurement
Share Share share option Hedging of post Unappropriated Total
capital premium  compensation  reserve employment profit
reserve benefits
Rupees
Balance as at January 1, 2012 10,728,000 11,144 58,397 (497,821) - 8,317,338 18,617,058
Transactions with owners
Share options lapsed during the period - - (1.471) = ~ ' (1.471)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for
the half year ended June 30, 2012
Loss for the period - - - - - {1,731,350) {1,731,350)| .
Other comprehensive income
- cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 82,653 - - 82,653
- - - 82,653 - (1,731,350) (1,648,697)
Balance as at June 30, 2012 (unaudited) 10,728,000 11,144 56,926 (415,168) - 6,585,988 16,866,830
Share options lapsed during the period - - {56.926) - - - {56,926)
Total comprehensive income / {loss} for
the half year ended December 31, 2012
Laoss for the period - - - - - (1,203,225) (1,203.225)
Other comprehensive income
- cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 91.288 - - 91,288
- - - 91,288 - {1,203,225) (1,111,837)
Balance as at December 31, 2012 (audited) 10,728,000 11,144 - (323,880) - 5,382,763 15,798,027
Transactions with owners
Right shares issued during the period 1,500,000 - - - - - 1,500,000
Total comprehensive income for
the half year ended June 30, 2013
Profit for the period - - - - - 1,425,357 1,425,357
Other comprehensive income:
- cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - 101,280 - - 101.280
- remeasurements, net of tax - - - - 2.050 - 2.050
- - - 101,280 2,050 1,425,357 1,528,687
Balance as at June 30, 2013 (audited) 12,228,000 11,144 - (222,600) 2,050 6,808,120 18,826,714

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(Amounts in thousand)

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
Note 2013 2012
memmmmmenn————— Rupeeg==s==ssecmmuea

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 36 7,589,487 3,706,025
Retirement and other service benefits paid (30,556) (30,930)
Finance cost paid (4,179,476) (4,270,034)
Transaction cost paid (121,182) -
Taxes paid (216,700) (191,565)
Long term loans and advances (25,230) (17,591)
Net cash generated from / (utilized in) operating activities 3,016,343 (804,095)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (PPE) (286,372) (987,094)
Proceeds from sale of PPE 44,768 19,079
Income on deposits / other financial assets 192,522 96,063
Net cash utilized in investing activities (49,082) (871,952)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings - 4,500,000
Repayments of borrowings (1,617,862) {(7.171.511)
Proceeds from right issue 1,500,000 -
Net cash utilized in financing activities (117,862) (2,671,511)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,849,399 (4,347,558)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 4,084,716 4,490,812
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 37 6,934,115 143,254

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ENGRO FERTILIZERS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

{Amounts in thousand)

1.1

1.2

1.3

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Engro Fertilizers Limited ("the Company') is a public comnpany incorperated on June 29, 2009 in Pakistan
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the
Holding Company}. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, purchasing and marketing of
fertitizers. The Company's registered office is situated at 7th & 8th fioors, The Harbour Front Building, Plot
Number HC-3, Block 4, Scheme Number 5, Clifton, Karachi. The Company has issued Term Finance
Certificates which are listed at the Karachi Stock Exchange,

Effective January 1, 2010, the Holding Company through a Scheme of Arrangement, under Section 284 to
288 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, separated its fertilizer undertaking for continuation thereof by the
Company, from the rest of the undertaking which has been retained in the Holding Company. Further, the
Holding Company was renamed from Engro Chemical Pakistan Limited to Engro Corporation Limited, the
principal activity of which now is to manage investments in subsidiary companies and joint ventures,

Going concern assumption

During the period, the Company continued to experience gas curtailment on SNGPL network receiving
approximately 24% of the contracted volume. However, due to the events mentioned in the following
paragraphs, the financial results and the position of the Company has improved significantly as the gap
between current lizbilities and current assets has been reduced {o Rs. 915,320 as at June 30, 2013 from
Rs.11,865,763 as at December 31, 2012. It is primariliy due to current maturities re-profiled during the
period. Further, the current period's profit after taxation amounts to Rs. 1,425,357 as against a loss after
taxation for the year 2012 of Rs. 2,934,575.

- Enven plant continued to ran successfully on Mari gas resulting in incremental 10% to 15% production,
bringing in enhancement of margins and increase in the operational cash flows. This conversion has
been approved tili December 31, 2013 by Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources (MPNR) on
February 27, 2013 and the management is confident that this approval would be extended till the gas
from the alternative / new gas reserves comes on stream;

- The process to formalize long term ailocation of 79 MMSCFD gas pursuant to the notification of the
Economic Co-ordination Committee (ECC) has been initiated. The ECC, on January 01, 2013, had
approved the allocation of gas reserves from Makori East, Reti-Maru, Mari SML, Kunnar Pasaki Deep
and Bzahu fields to the Consortium of four fertilizer plants (the Consortium). The total allocation in this
respect {0 the Consortium is 202 MMSCFD including the Company's share of 79 MMSCFD, The
Consortium has accordingly entered info Gas Sales Agreements (GSAs) for the supply of gas from
Makori East, Reti-Maru and Kunnar Paszaki Deep fields. The inflow of gas is expecled to start from 3Q
2014;

- In the interim, the Company topped up its production as approximately 20 MMSCFD gas from Mari
SML, which is part of long term gas allocation, has already started flowing in since April 2013, This gas
is pursuant to the signing of term sheet with Marl SML which is currently valid upto December 31,
2013. The Company also expects to obtain the entire allocation from Reti Maru gas field (approx. 10
MMSCFD) given the relative proximity of the field to Engro plant. The work on pipeline has
commenced and the gas is likely to flow towards the end of 2013 ahead of full implementation of the
long-term solution in 3G 2014; and

- The lenders, as at June 30, 2013, have formally agreed on the revised repayment schedule allowing
the Company 2.5 years extension in the [can tenor, as referred to in note 16.10.
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(Amounts in thousand)

2.1

2.1.1

2.1.3

21.4

Based on the above, the existence of unceriainty, if any, regarding the going concern assumption has
been removed,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These pdlicies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, uniess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
re-measurement of certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
hedging instrument at fair value and recognition of certain staff retirement benefits at present value.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), direclives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP) and the approved financial reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved
financial reporting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the provisions of the Ordinance.
Wherever, the requitements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the SECP differ with the
requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Ordinance or the reguirements of the said
directives have been followed.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statemenis are
disclosed in note 3.

Initial application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation fo an existing Standard

a) Standards, amendments to published standards and interprefations effective in 2013 and
relevant

The following amendments to published standards are mandaiory for the financial year beginning
January 1, 2013:

- IFRS 7 {Amendment) 'Financial instruments: Disclosures, on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities'. The amendment reflects the joint IASB and FASB requirements to enhance current
offsetting disclosures. The amendment clarifies the offsetting requirements for amounts presented in
the financial statemenis te facilitate comparison between those entities that prepare IFRS financial
statements and those that prepare in accordance with US GAAP. The amendment only affects ihe
disclosures in the Company's financial statements.

- IFRS 13 'Fair value measurement. This standard aims to improve consistency and reduce
complexity by providing a precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs. The reguirements do not extend
the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use is
already required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs. The amendment only affects the
disclosures in the Company's financial statements.

- IAS 1 (Amendment) ‘Financial statement presentation’. The main change resulting from these
amendmenis is a requirement for entities to group items presented in 'Other comprehensive income'
{OCI} on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss subsequently
{reclassification adjustments). The amendment only affects the disclosures in the Company's
financial statements.
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{Amounts in thousand}

- IAS 1 (Amendment) 'Financial statement presentation’. The amendment clarifies the disclosure
requirermnents for comparative information when an entity provides a third balance sheet either: {i) as
required by [AS 8, ‘Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors'; or ({if)
voluntarily. The amendment only affects the disclosures in the Company’s financial statements. The
amendments do nct have any material impact on the Company's financial statements.

- 1AS 16 (Amendment) ‘Property, plant and eguipment'. The amendment clarifies that spare parts and
servicing equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment rather than inventory when they
meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. The Company's current policies and disclosures
are in line with this amendment.

- IAS 19 (Amendment) ‘Employee benefits’. The amendments eliminate the corridor approach and
require recognition all actuarial gains and losses in ‘Other comprehensive income' {OCl) as they
ocour and replaces interest cost and  expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that
is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability / asset. The application
of the amendment is likely fo result in immediate recognition of all actuarial gain and losses in OCI
and reguires additional disclosures to present the characteristics of benefit plans, the amount
recognized in the financial statements, and result in changes in benefit classification and
presentation. The Company has recognized the effect of such amendment in the current period
financial statements, as explained in note 2.18.2.

b) Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective in 2013

hut not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory
for the financial year beginning on January 1, 2013 are considered not to be relevant or to have any
significant effect on the Company's financial reporiing and operations.

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendmenits to published standards are not effective for the financial
year beginning on January 1, 2013 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

- IFRS @ ‘Financial instruments’ {effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2015), not yet
notified by SECP. IFRS 9 replaces the parts of [AS 39, ‘Financial instruments: recognition and
measurement’ that relate to classification and measurement of financial instruments. IFRS 9 requires
financial assets to be classified into two measurement categories; those measured at fair vaiue and
those measured at amortized cost. The defermination is made at initial recognition. For financial
liabilities, the standard retains most of the requiremenits of IAS 38. The Company is yet to assess the
full impact of IFRS 9, however, the initial indications are that it may not affect the Company's
financial statements significantly.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that
are not yet effective and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented
here.

A



{Amounts in thousand)

2.2

2.2.1

222

2.3

Property, plant and equipment

Owned assets

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, except
free-hold land and capital work in progress which are stated at cost. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items including borrowing costs {note 2.22). The cost of
self constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which they are located. Purchased sofiware that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

Where major components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits asscciated with the itemn will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged o the profit and loss account during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Disposal of asset is recognised when significant risk and rewards incidental to ownership have been
transferred to buyers. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other operating expenses / income' in the profit and loss
account.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account using the straight line method, except for catalyst
whose depreciation is charged on the basis of no. of production days, whereby the cost of an operating
asset less its estimated residual value is written off over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on addition
is charged from the month following the menth in which the assel is available Tor use and on disposals up
to the preceding month of disposal.

Depreciation method, useiu! lives and residual values are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

teases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, are
classified as finance lease. Upon initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of iis fair value and present value of minimum lease payments, Subsequent to inltial recognition,
the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. Quistanding
obligations under the lease less finance cost allocated to future periods are shown as a liability,

Finance cost under lease agreemenis are allocated fo the pericds during the lease term so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of finance cost on the remaining balance of principal liability for each period.

Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives uniess it is
reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term.

Intangible assefs
a) Compufer Software and Licenses

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense when
incurred. However, costs that are directly atiributable to identifiable software and have probable
eccnomic benefits exceeding the cost beyond cne year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct
costs include the purchase cost of sofiware (license fee) and related overhead cost.

o



(Amounts in thousand)

24

2.5

2.6

2.6.1

Expenditure which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original
specification and useful life is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of
the software.

Computer software and license cost treated as intangible assets are amortised from the date the
software is put to use on a straight-line basis over a period of 3 to 4 vears.

b} Rights for future gas utilization

Rights for future gas utilization represents premium paid to the Government of Pakistan for allocation
of 160 MMSCFD natural gas for 2 period of 20 years for Enven plant. The rights are being amortised
from the date of commercial production on a siraight-line basis over the remaining allocation period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Asseis that are subject to depreciation / amortisation are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
circumstances indicating occurrence of impairment loss or reversal of previous impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an assel's fair value less cost {o sale and
value in use. Reversal of impairment loss is restricted to the original cost of the asset.

Non current assets {or disposal groups} heid-for-sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is
to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Impairment losses on
initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on remeasurement are recognised in
the profit and less account.

Financial assets

Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss,
held to maturity, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for frading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in
this category are classified as current assets.

b} Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not guoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets.



(Amounts in thousand)

262

¢} Held to maturity financial assefs

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity with a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

d) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose it off within 12 months of the end of the reporting date.
There were no available for sale financial assets at the balance sheet date.

Recognifion and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date - the date on which the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and fransaction costs are
expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have bsen transferred and the Company has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are subseguently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effeciive interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss’ category are presented in the profit and loss account within ‘other operating income / expenses’ in the
period in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of other income when the Company's right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in fair vaiue of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in statement of comprehensive income are
included in the profit and loss account as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
profit and loss account as part of other income. Dividends on available for sale equity instruments are
recognised in the profit and loss account as part of ather income when the Company's right to receive
payments is established.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
tinancial assets, the cumulative loss is remaved from equity and recognised in the profit and loss account.
Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss account on equity instruments are not reversed through
the profit and loss account. Impairment testing of trade debts and other receivables is described
in note 2.12.

elfe
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27

2.8

28

210

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party fo the contractual
previsions of an instrument, Financial liabilities are extinguished when it is discharged or cancelled or
expires ar when there is substantial modification in the terms and conditions of the original financial liability
or part of it. The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the criginal effective
interest rate, is af least ten percent different from the discounted present vatue of the remalning cash flows
of the original financial liability. If modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the exchange or
modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying
amount of the liability and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asseis and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either on a net
basis, or realise the assef and settle the liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities

Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; attributable transaction cost are recognised in profit and
loss account when incurred. Subsequent fo initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair values, and
changes therein are accounted for as described below:

a) Cash flow hedges

Changes in fair value of derivative hedging instruments designated as a cash flow hedge are
recognised in statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the
extent the hedge is ineffective, changes in fair value are recognised in profit and loss account.

If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised, the hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively. The cumulative gain or
loss previously deferred in equity remains there until the forecast transaction occurs. When the hedged
itern is a non-financial asset, the amount previously deferred in equity is fransferred to carrying amount
of the asset when It is recognised. In other cases the amouni deferred in equity is transferred to profit
and loss account in the same period that the hedge item affects profit and loss account.

b) Qiher non-trading derivatives

When a derivative financial instrument is not held for trading, and is not designated in a qualifying
hedge relationship, all changes in ifs fair value are recognised immediately in profit and loss account.

The Company holds derivative financial instruments fo hedge its foreign currency and interest rate risk
exposure. Further, the Company has issued options fo convert IFC loan on its shares and the shares of the
Molding Company as disclosed in note 16.4. The fair values of various derivative instruments used for
hedging and the conversion options are disclosed in note 18.

Stores, spares and loose fools

These are valued at weighted average cost except far items in transit which are siated at invoice value
plus other charges paid thereon till the balance sheet date. For items which are slow moving and / or
identified as surplus to the Company's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book
value over estimated realizable value. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores and spares on
a reqular basis and provision is made for obsolescence.



{Amounts in thousand)

2.1

2.12

2,13

2.14

2.15

2,16

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using weighted average
method except for raw materials in transit which are stated at cost {invoice value) plus other charges
incurred thereon till the balance sheet date. Cost in relation to finished goods includes applicable purchase
cost and maznufacturing expenses. The cost of work in process includes material and proportionate
conversion costs.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to be incurred in order to make the sales.

Trade debts and other receivables

These are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, if any and

'subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method less provision for

impairment, if any. A provision for impairment is established if there is objective evidence that the
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. The
amount of provision is charged to profit and loss account. Trade debts and other receivables considered
irrecoverable are written-off.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents in the statement of cash flows includes cash in hand, balance with banks, other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts /
short term borrowings. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, Borrowings are
subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as curreni liabilities upless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
setilement of the liability for at least 12 months afier the balance sheet date.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

These are classified as curreni liabilities it payment is due within one year or less {or in the normal
ope;at%ng cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.
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217

218

2.18.1

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred iax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
or direcily in eguity. In this case the tax is also recognised in the statement of comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current

The current income tax charge is based on the taxable income for the year calculated on the basis of the
tax [aws enacted or subsiantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, providing for all temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected fo be applied to
the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacied by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred fax assets are reviewed at each reporiing
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Employee henefiis
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contribution
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obiigation to pay furiher amounts. Obligations
for contributions to defined coniribution plans are recognised as an emplayee benefit expense in profit and
loss account when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

The Company centributes to:

- defined coniribution provident fund for its permanent employees. Monthly contributions are made both
by the Company and employees to the fund at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

- defined contribution pension fund for the benefit of those management employees who have not opted
for defined contribution gratuity fund as more fully explained in note 2.18.3. Monthly contributions are
made by the Company to the fund at rates ranging from 12.5% te 13.75% of basic salary.

- defined contribution gratuity fund for the benefit of those management employees who have selected
to opt out of defined benefit gratuity fund and defined contribution pension plans as more fully
explained in note 2.18.3. Monthly contributions are made by the Company to the fund at the rate of
8.33% of basic salary.
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2.18.2 Defined benefit pians

2.18.3

2184

2.18.5

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the Projected Unit Credit method, related details of which are given in note to the financial
statemenis.

Consequent to amendments to IAS 19, as referred to in note 2.1.4 (8), the Company has changed its
accounting policy in accordance therewith whereby actuarial gains / losses are now being recognised
direcily in equity through statement of other comprehensive income. Previously, such actuarial gains /
losses arising at each valuation date were being recognised under the corridor approach whereby actuarial
gains/ losses in excess of corridor (10% of the higher of fair value of asseis and present value of
obligation) were recognised over the average remaining service life of the employees. Since the effect of
such change in policy on the Company's equity, retirement benefits obligation and profit and loss for the
prior years is immaterial, the Company has not re-stated prior year's financial statements and recognized
prior year efiects (unrecognised portion) in the current period financial statements.

Contributions require assumptions to be made of future outcomes which mainly includes increase in
remuneration, expected long-term return on plan assets and the discount rate used to convert future cash
flows to current values. Calculations are sensitive to changes in the underlying assumptions.

The Company also contributes to:

- defined benefit funded pension scheme for its management employees.

- defined bensfit funded gratuity schemes for its management and non-management employees.

The pension scheme provides life time pension to retired employees or to their spouses. Contributions are
made annually to these funds on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The pension scheme has been
curtailed and effective from July 1, 2005, no new members are inducied in this scheme.

Actuarial gains on curtailment of defined benefit pension scheme {curtailed) is recognised immediately
once the certainty of recovery is established.

tn June 2011, the Company gave a one time irrevocable offer to selected members of MPT Employees'
Defined Benefit Gratuity Fund and Defined Contribution Pension Fund to join a new MPT Employee's
Defined Contribution Gratuity Fund (the Fund), a defined contribution plan. The present value, as at
June 30, 2011, of the defined benefit obligation of those employees, who accepted this offer, were
transferred to the Fund. Furthermore, from July 2011 onwards, the monthly contributions to Defined
Contribution Pension Fund of such employees were discontinued.

Seyvice incentive plan

Company recognises provision and an expense under a service incentive plan for certain category of
experienced employees to continue in the Company's employment.

Employees’ compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed leave balance of each
empioyee at the end of the period.
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2.21

222

223

2,24
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{Amounts in thousand)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has & legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and It is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency. Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit and loss acccunt.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is reduced for marketing allowances. Revenue is recognised on
the following basis:

- Sales revenue is recognised when product is dispatched to customers;

- Income on deposits and other financial asseis is recognised on accrual basis; and

- Commission income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
reievant agreement.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cosis are recognised as an expense in the pericd in which they are incurred except where such
costs are directly atiributable to the acguisition, construstion or production of a qualifying asset in which
case such costs are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs includes exchange
differences arising on foreign currency borrowings to the extent these are regarded as an adjustment to
borrowing costs and net gain / loss on the settlement of derivatives hedging instruments.

Research and development costs
Research and development costs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Government grant

Government grant that compensates the Company for expenses incurred is recognised in the profit and
loss account on a systematic basis in the same period in which the expenses are recognised. Government
grants are deducted from related expense.

At
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2.25

2.28

2.27

34

3.2

33

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary share holders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Transactions with related parties

Sales, purchases and other transactions with related parties are carried out on commercial terms and
conditions.

Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which
these are approved.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluaied and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabie under the
gircumstances.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful life, residual value used in the
calculation of depreciation. Further where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis.

During the year, the Company has revised the depreciation method of catalyst from number of years to
number of production days to better reflect the consumption of its economic benefits. The effect of such a
change in estimate is not material.

Investments stated at fair value through profit and loss

Management has determined fair value of certzin investments by using quotations from active market and
conditions and infermation about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nafure and
involve some uncertainties and matters of judgment.

Derivatives

The Company reviews changes in fair values of the derivative hedging financial instruments at each
reporting date based on the valuations received from the contracling banks. These valuations represent
estimated fluctuations in the relevant currencies/interest rates over the reporting period and other relevant
varizhles signifying currency and interest rate risks. The fair value of conversion options on IFC loan is
determined using the option pricing model.

A
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34

3.5

3.6

Stock-in-trade and stores & spares

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-frade and stores & spares to assess any
diminution in the respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to
estimated selling price less astimated expenditures to make the sales.

Income taxes

In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the management considers the
applicable laws and the decisionsfiudgments of appellate autherities on certain issues in the past
Accordingly, the recognition of deferred tax is also made, taking into account these judgments and the bast
estimates of future results of operations of the Company.

Provision for retirement and other service benefits obligations

The present value of these obligations depend on a number of factors thai are deiermined on actuarial
basis using various assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of
these obiigations. The present value of these obligations and the underlying assumptions are discloged in
note 35.1.3 and 35.1.7 respectively.

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 2013 2012
------------------- Rupees-m-mmceemmeuanunan
Operating assets at net hook vatue (note 4.1) 79,676,444 81,838,327
Capital work in progress
- Other projects (note 4.4) 713,386 608,052
- Major spare parts and stand-by equipment 385,681 433,322
1,088,067 1,041,374
80,675,511 82,877,701

oAfL



(Amounts in thousand)

4.1 Operating assets

14

Land Buitding Plant ami Gas Catalyst Furniture, Vehicles Tatal
Frechold tLeasehold  Frechold  Leaschotd machinery Pipefing fixhute and
equipment's
Rupees
Asg at January 1, 2012
Cost 149575 87,320  2.280.785 359,544 AB.867.556 1,706,029 1,516,580 557,461 466,283 95,181,203
Accumulated depreciation - {43,565) {485,088} (83,407) {9,151,956} {103,225) {515,145) (415,554) {219,852) {11,028,772)
Nt book value 148,575 43,785 1,764,727 276,437 78,815,640 1,602,804 1.00.445 151.307 245,441 B35,152.411
Year ended December 31, 2012
tlet boak value - January 1, 2012 148,575 143,756 1.764,727 276137 78.815,640 1.602.804 1,004,445 151,907 245,441 85,152,431
Transfers from CWIP {nole 4.4) - - 199,078 T.627 1,518,591 797 266,587 77.580 9,120 2,149,390
Adjustments B “ {74,703) - (244,627} - - - - {319,330}
Disposals fwrite offs
Cost - - - - {163,636} - - {11,178} (78,046) {257,860)
Accumulated gepreciation - - - - 11,843 - - 2,808 42,212 63,863
- - B - (151,793} - . {1.370} {35.834) {188,987}
Depreciation charge - (4,289) {117,645} {8.027) (4,271,752} {66,825} {358,064} (54.348) {69.207) (4,857,167}
Nei book value 149,575 139,468 3.771.457 274.737 76,666,049 1,536,776 S0B,968 168779 220.520 81,835,327
As at January 1, 2012
Cost 149,575 187.320 2385170 WBraATE We77.824 1,706.826 1783177 633,873 467,367 07,758,403
Accumulated deprerialion - #47.854) {613,713} (92.434) (13.411.8735) {170,050} {874.208) (465,094) {245,847) {15922,076)
Net book value 148,575 139,466 1,771,457 274,137 76,668,049 1,538,776 906968 16B.779 220,520 81,835,327
Haif year ended June 30, 2013
Ne! book value - January 1, 2013 149,875 139,466 1771457 274,737 76,666,049 1,536,776 498,968 168,779 220,520 21,835,327
Transfers from CWIFP {nole 4.4) - - 80,832 - 118,745 - - 13,772 3,235 215,684
Dispesals / wile offs {nole 4.3)
Cost - - - - (108,208) - - {2,379) {24,456} {135,644}
Accumutaled deprecialion - - - - 57,353 - - 2378 17,185 75917
- - - - (50,858} - - - {7.271) {88,127)
Depreciation charge {note 4.2) - {2,197} {68,479) {4,590}  {2,140,480) (27,:342) {116,271) {28,220) {30,861) (2.418.440)
Net book value 149,575 137,268 1.783,810 270,147 74,553,458  1.509.434 792,687 154,331 185,723 79,575.444
As at June 30,2013
Cost 149,575 187,320 2,456,002 3IBTAM 90,088 460 1,705,826 1,783,177 540,266 446,246 97,840,043
Accumulated depreciaticn - (50,051) {682,192) {97,024) (15,485,002} (197,332} {850,480) {490,935} (260,523)  [18,263,548)
Net book value 149,575 137,268 1,783,818 270,147 74,593,458 1,508,434 792,697 154,331 185.723 789.576.444
No, of
Annual rate of depraciation (3} . 2105 25106 25 51030 50 m::::m 101025 121025
{nole 3.1)
Audited tinaudited
Half year ended Halif year ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
4.2 Depreciation charge for the period has been allocated as follows: mmmumnmcamnasm e R U PR EE s eim s
Cost of sales (note 26) 2,392,431 2,478,746
Seiling and distribution expenses (note 27) 13,133 15,336
Administrative expenses {note 28) 12,876 16,437
2,418,440 2,510,519

“A
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Description and Sold to
method of disposal
3 Plant and machinery
Old Ammonia 1 plant Pak Arab Engineering
{dismantled portion}) {Private} Limited
~ Crank Shaft for C2E compressor written off

Vehicles

Muhammad Idrees

Bilal Mustafa

Rehan Sajjad

- Abdul Hafeez Sheikh
Masir Igbal

Muhammad Azam Khan
Rehman Hanif
Mohammad Ahmed Rai
Waseem Haider
Muhammad Asif Ali

By Company policy to existing /
separaling executives

Chartis Insurance Co.
Hampshire insurance Company

Insurance claim

Sale through bid Raees Khan

Hassan Ali Warsi
Choudhry Asjad Ghani
Sultan Jan Niazi

Imran Ahmed

Syed Mehboob Ali
Mohammed Jawed
Musab Siddiqui

Shan Jan

Noor Mohammed Mughat
Zahid Qadri

ltems having net book value upto Rs. 50 each
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Half year ended June 30, 2013

Year ended December 31, 2012

Af-

4.3 The details of operating asseis disposed / written off during the period are as follows:

Cost Accumulated Met book Sale
depreciation value Proceeds
Rupees

55,497 46,086 g411 29,018

52,712 11,267 41,445 -
108,208 57,353 50,856 29,018
1,561 1,229 332 332
1,439 1,079 380 3690
1,439 1,078 360 360
1,439 1079 360 360
1567 1177 390 859
1,359 iTi 588 588
1,389 673 716 1,388
1,328 872 457 472
1.461 594 867 1,461
1,439 1,079 360 558
14,422 9,632 4,790 8,740
1,060 795 265 850
1,560 366 1,194 1,550
605 545 60 448
535 482 53 515
560 504 56 436
605 545 60 419
316 316 - 875
485 436 49 462
879 659 220 800
555 500 55 291
530 485 35 511
485 485 - 518
1,859 1425 434 1,198
7,414 6,392 1,022 8,171
24,456 17,185 7.271 15,311
2,378 2,379 - 439
135,044 76,917 58,127 44,768
252,860 63,863 188,997 43,835
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{Amounts in thousand)

Capital work in progress - Other Projects

16

Building & civil Furniture, Other
Plant & works ) Advances to .
i fixture & X ancillary Total
machinery  including Gas . suppliers
o equipment cost
pipeline
Rupees

Year ended December 31, 2012
Batance as at January 1, 2012 456,131 200,515 33,275 19,153 77,005 786,079
Additions during the year 1,783,042 156,004 26,727 62,794 1,449 2,030,016
Reclassifications (13,168) (4.219) 26,274 3 (9,228} -
Transferred to:

- gperating assets (note 4.1) (1,785,178} {207,502) {77,590} {79,120} - {2,149,390)

- intangible assets (note 5) - - - - {58,653} (58,653)
Balance as at December 31, 2012 440,827 144,738 4,686 3,168 10,573 548,052
Half year e nded June 30, 2013
Balance as at January 1, 2013 440,827 144,798 B.686 3,168 10,573 608,052
Additions during the period {note 4.4.1) 293,030 27,586 7,864 167 5,366 334,013
Reclassifications (59,762) 54,279 3,283 - 2,230 -
Transferred to:

- operating assels (note 4.1) {118,745) (80,832} (13,772) (3,335) - {216,684)

- intangible assets (note 5) - - - - {11,895) (11,995)
Balance as at June 30, 2013 555,350 145,831 6,031 - 6,174 713,386

Includes Rs, 431 in respect of construction of pipeline for obatining gas from Reti Maru gas field against the
Company's share in the total cost of pieplines {o be incurred by the Consortium, as referred to in note 24.10.1.



{(Amounts in thousand)

5

5.1

5.2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As at January 1, 2012
Cost

Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Year ended December 31, 2012
Net book value - January 1, 2012
Transfers from CWIP (note 4.4)
Amortisation

Net book value

As at December 31, 2012

Cost
Accumulated amortization
Net book value

Half year ended June 30, 2013

Net book value- January 1, 2013
Transfers from CWIP (note 4.4)
Amortisation (noie 5.1)

Net book value

As at June 30, 2013

Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net book value

17

Amortisation for the period has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (note 26)

Selling and distribution expenses (note 27)
Administrative expenses {note 28)

The Company does not have any internally generated Intangible assets.

A

Software and Rights for
licenses future gas Total
utilisation
Rupees
168,031 102,312 270,343
(132,918) (2,656) {135,574)
35,113 99,656 134,769
35,113 99,656 134,769
58,653 - 58,653
{26,756) {5,111) {31,867)
67,010 94,545 161,555
226,684 102,312 328,886
(159,674) (7,767) {167,441)
67,010 94,545 161,555
67,010 04,545 161,555
11,995 - 11,995
(14,986} (2,555) {17,521)
84,039 91,8390 156,029
238,679 102,312 340,991
(174,640) (10,322) {184,962)
64,039 91,990 156,029
Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
------------------ Ru PEES s nmmsnn
17,081 7,697
24 24
416 6,153
17,521 13,874
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{Amounts in thousand)

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES - Considered good 2013 2012
------------------ Rupees - eseammeassnn
Long term [oans to:
Executives (notes 6.1 and 6.2) 136,452 145,659
Other employees (note 6.3) 47,584 2,603
183,046 148,162
Less: Current portion shown under
current assets (note 10) 74,053 64,399
108,993 83,763
Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans
and advances o executives
Balance at beginning of the period / year 145,658 130,561
Disbursements 46,359 105,347
Repaymenis / amortisation {56,566) {90,249)
Balance at end of the period / year 135,452 145,658

Inciudes interest free services incentive loans to executives of Rs. 87,025 {December 31, 2012
Rs. 87,686) . It also includes advance of Rs. 26,674 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 37,001), Rs. 7,351
(December 31, 2012: Rs, 8,707) and Rs. 4,402 {December 31, 2012 Rs. 12,265) to executives for car
earn out assistance, long term incentive and house rent advance respectively.

Represents interest free loans given to workers of Rs. 47,594 (December 31, 2072: Rs. 2,503) pursuant {o
Collective Labour Agresment.

The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any month during the half year ended June 30, 2013 from
executives aggregated to Rs. 152,139 (December 31, 2012; Rs. 160,101).

The carrying values of the loan and advances are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these
financial assets can be assessed with reference to no defaults ever.

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS 2013 2012
----------------- Rupeeg=--semsmcemeanan
Consumable stores 422 107 360,975
Spares 3,508,356 3,818,143
Tools 4,085 3,373
4,334,548 4,182,491
Less: Provision for surplus and slow moving items 84,893 75,200
4,248,655 4,107,291
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{Amounts in thousand)

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
STOCK-IN-TRADE 2013 2012
................. RUpeeg-mmmmermummmmmmm
Raw materials {note 8.1 and 8.2) 1,262,712 1,007,159
Packing materials 70,635 48,906
1,333,347 1,056,065
Finished goods 345,331 631,007
1,678,678 1,687,072

Includes in-transit amounting to Nil {December 31, 2012: Rs, 424,837).

includes raw material amounting to Nit (December 31, 2012: Rs. 201,808) held in custody by Engro Eximp
{Frivate) Limited, an associated undertaking.

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
TRADE DEBTS 2013 2012
Rupees
Considered good
- Secured (note 8.1) 803,744 1,006,181
- Unsecured 79,064 39,510
882,808 1,046,091
Considered doubtful 27073 8,073
909,881 1,054,164
Provision for impairment (note 9.3) (27,073) {8,073)
882,808 1,046,081

These debis are secured by way of bank guarantee and inland letter of credit.

As at June 30, 2013, trade debts aggregating to Rs. 53,143 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 93,927) were past
due but not impaired. These relate fo various customers for which there is no recent history of defaulf,

As at June 30, 2013, trade debts aggregating to Rs. 27,073 were past due and provided for. The ageing
analysis of these provided for debts is as foliows:

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees
Upto 1 year 19,600 -
More than 1 year 8,073 8,073
27,073 8,073

e
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{Amounts in thousand)

LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

Current portion of long term loans and advances to executives
and other employees - considered good {note 6)

Advances and deposits

Prepaymenis
- insurance

- Others

Provision for impairment (note 10.1)

Audited Audited
June 30, Becember 31,
2013 2012
------------------ Rupees---mmremeemenenne
74,083 64,399
94,233 140,060
58,516 179,407
9,345 12,796
237,147 386,662
{(5,770) {1,512)
231,377 395,150

As at June 30, 2013, loans and advances aggregating to Rs. 5,770 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 1,512) were
impaired and provided for. The ageing analysis of impaired advances is as follows:

Upto 1 vear
More than t year

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Receivable from Government of Pakistan
Accrued income on deposits / investments
Receivable from pension fund (note 35.1.1)

Due from the Holding Company and associated companies:

- Engro Foods Limited

- Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited

- Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited

- Engro Foundation

- Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited
- Engro Eximp Agri Products {Private} Limited
- Engre Vopak Terminal Limited

Claims on foreign suppliers
[nsurance claims / receivables
Otlhers

Less: Provision for impairment

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
g 1 11 | o= Y=T-FEE )
4,258 -
1,512 1,512
5770 1,512
291 291
27,292 10,816
- 1,800
2,862 259
1,875 4425
928 4,534
8 462
396 -
1,174 203
20 7
7,185 3,848
73 30,455
4,230 4,403
18,861 48,596
- 465
45,444 51,038
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(Amounts in thousand)

1141

12

12.1

12.2

12.3

The maximum amount due from the Holding Company / associated companies at the end of any month

during the half year aggregated as follows:

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
------------------- Rupgessvrmmscmennnaan
Holding Company
- Engro Carporation Limited - 36,342
Assactated companies
- Engro Eximp (Private) Limited 33,039 69,798
- Engro Foods Limited 4,705 7,755
- Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 9,400 17,267
- Engra Powergen Qadirpur Limited 17,116 12,960
- Engro PowerGen Limited - 1,090
- Sindh Engre Coal Mining Company Limited 1,510 452
- Engro Eximp Agri Products (Private) Limited 2,924 1,623
- Engro Foundation 729 462
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited 210 447

As at June 30, 2013, receivables aggregating to Rs. 12,783 (December 31, 2012; Rs, 42,047} were past due

but not impaired. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
------------------ RUpegsg---cmermraaemmn
Upto 3 months 4,336 36,100
3 to 6 months 2,668 3,229
More than 6 months 5,779 2,709
12,783 42,047
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Fixed income placements (note 12.1) 61,881 652,148
Money market funds (note 12.2) - 400,000
61,881 1,062,148
Loans and receivables
Reverse repurchase of treasury bills - 1,088,681
Held to maturity
Treasury bills (nole 12.3) 4,762,780 494,510
4,824 661 2,635,339

These represents foreign and local currency deposits with various banks, at the interest rates

7.85% per annum to 8.00% per annum (December 31, 2012: 7.25% per annum to 10.00% per

ranging from

annum),

These represents investments in various money market funds which are valued at their respective net assets

values at balance sheet date.

These represents treasury bills at the interest rate ranging from 9.84% per annum to 9.43% per annum

(December 31, 2012: 9.21% per annum).
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13

1341

13.2

14

4.1

14.2

Audited Audited

CASH AND BANK BALANCES June 30, December 31,

2013 2012
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ RuUpeesrermrrerememwnua-

Cash at banks on:

- deposit accounts (note 13.1 and 13.2) 2,551,11¢ 2,356,345
- current accounts 51,085 85,573
2,602,204 2,441,918
Cash in hand - imprest funds 7,250 7,250
2,609,454 2,449,168

Deposit accounts carried refurn at rates ranging upto 9.30% per annum (December 31, 2012: 10.00% per
annum).

Includes Rs. 24,435 {December 31, 2012; Rs.14,718) held in foreign currency bank accounts.

Audited Audited
SHARE CAPITAL June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees

Authorised Capital
1,300,000,00C (2012: 1,300,000,000)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 13,000,000 13,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
150,000,007 (2012: 7) Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash 1,500,000 -
9,999,983 (2012: 9,999,893) Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each issued as at January 1, 2010

on transfer of fertilizer undertaking (note 1.2) 100,000 100,000
1,062,800,000 (2012: 1,062,800,000) Ordinary shares of

Rs. 10 each, issued as fully paid bonus shares 10,628,000 10,628,000

12,228,000 10,728,000

The Holding Company as at June 30, 2013 held 100% (December 31, 2012: 100%) ordinary shares in the
Company.

MOVEMENT IN iISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL UP

Audited Audited
June 30, Dacember 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
-—-—-Number of shares--—- Rupees
1,072,800 1,072,800 At January 1 10,728,000 10,728,000
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued at par
150,000 - during the period as fully paid right shares at 1,500,000 -
Rs. 10 eon June 27, 2013.
1,222,800 1,072,800 At period / year end 12,228,000 10,728,000

e



{Amounts in thousand)

15

15.1

16

16.1

16.2

HEDGING RESERVE

Hedging reserve on account of:

- Interest rate swaps

Deferred tax

23

Audited Audited
June 30, December
2013 2012
--------------- RUPEESmmmmamammmnnn
(337,272) (498,277)
(337,272) (498,277)
114,672 174,397
(222,600) {323,880)

Hedging reserve primarily represents the effective portion of changes in fair values of designated cash flow
hedges, net off associated gains / losses recognised in initial cost of the hedged item and profit and loss

account where applicable.

BORROWINGS - Secured {Non-participatory)

Lang teem finance utilized
under mask-up arrangemeanis:

Habib Bank Limited
Allied Bank Limited
Askad Bank Limited
Cilibank N.A,

H3BC Middle Ezst Uimited

Standard Chanered Bank
(Pakistan) Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Syndicated finance

Istamic gffshore finanee

DFIt Consorium finance

Intemational Finance Corporation

Inlemational Finance Corporalian

Rank Islami Pakistan Limiteg

Pak Kuwait Invesiment Compaay
{Private) Eimited

Faysal Bank Limited

Dubai [slamic Bank Limited

Silk Baak Limited

Standasd Chanered Bank

Samba Bank Limile¢

Habib Mairopclitan Bank Limited

Naticnal Bank of Pakistan

Cerlificates

Tarm Finance Cedificates - 2nd lssue
Temm Finante Certificates - 3rd lssue
Sukuk Certificates

Privately Placed Subordinated
Temn Finance Cenificates

Less: Currand portion shown undar
curzent habilities

Hote

16.1
16,2
16.3
16.4
16.4

16.5
6.6

16.10

Mark « up
rale p.a.

8 menths KIBOR + 1.1%%
6 mcnths KIBOR + 1.1%
S manths KIBOR + 1.1%
6 monlhs KIBOR + 1,9%

& manths KIBOR + 1.1%

6 months KIBOR + 1,1%
6 monihs KIBOR + 1,1%
6 menths KIBOR + 1.8%
6 monlhs LIBOR + 2.57%
6 monlhs LIBOR + 2.8%
6 months LIBOR + 6%

6 months LIBOR + 6%

6 months KIBOR + 2.49%

& months KIBOR + 2.35%
& monihs KIBOR + 2.35%
6 Manths KIBOR + 2.11%
6 Manths KIBOR + 2.35%
§ Months KIBOR + 2.40%
& Months KIBOR + 2.40%
& Months KIBOR + 2.40%
§ Months KIBOR + 2404

§ monlhs KIBOR + 1.55%
& manths KIBOR + 2.4%
& months KIBOR + 1.5%

Instaliments

Number

12 balf yearly
12 hall yaarly
12 hall yeady
12 hall yeardy

8 half yeardy

42 half yeary
12 balf yearly
45 hall yearly
12 hall yearty
15 half yeariy
3 half yeary

3 hali yearly

14 half yaady

10 hall yeary
13 halfl yearly
14 hall yeady
10 hall yearly
14 halfl yearly
14 hall yeary
10 half yeasdy
10 half veady

2 half yearly

Commenced {
Commeneing from

September 30, 2010
Dezember 25, 2010
December 29, 2610
Decembar 29, 2010

December 28, 2010

December 28, 2040
Seplember 4, 2011
Febnary 27, 2092
Karch 28, 20%%
April 15, 2011
Seplember 15, 2015
Seplamber 15, 2016
May 25, 2010

April 30, 2012
Hovember 26, 2012
Dacember 31, 2012

Janvary 21, 2013
Seplembar 17, 2012
September 30, 2012

June 21, 2013

March 28, 2013

Mareh B, 2035

Audited Audited
June 34, December 34,
2013 2mz
ﬁup '
651,303 700,000
1,303,027 1,406,000
163,750 175,000
70,000 76,000
400,000 137,500
326,088 350,000
1,235,429 1,275,000
16,001,904 16,567,178
8,413,184 8,706,240
6,108,021 6,062,450
4,719,602 4,554,822
2,917,585 2,831,600
317,991 363,418
148,029 397,605
1,441,657 1,498,896
494,159 494,858
276,000 239,643
959,744 933,967
£80,509 497,740
179,965 39,465
944,846 995,628
3,977,026 3,976,408
1,743,858 1,822,096
2,993,444 2,991,775
6,610,000 5,996,536
62,209,038 §3,378,038
T.444,858 14,806,412
54,764,180 48,481,626

This represents a syndicated finance agreement with Allied Bank Limited, Bank Alfalah Limited, Habib Bank
Limited, MCR Bank Limited, National Bank of Pakistan, Standard Chartered and United Bank Limited which
was fully disbursed. Some of the banks have sold down their share to other banks.

This represents the balance amount of an offshore Islamic Finance Facility Agreement of USD 150,000 with
Citi Bank, Dubai Islamic Bank, Habib Bank Limited, National Bank of Pakistan, SAMBA Financial Group and
Standard Chartered Bank which has been reprofiled.
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(Amounts in thousand)

16.3

16.4

This represents the balance amount of a facility agreement amounting to USD 85,000 with a consortium of
Development Finance Institutions comarising of DEG, FMO and OFID.

The Holding Company entered into a C Loan Agreement (Original Agreement) dated September 29, 2009
with International Finance Corporation (IFC} for USD 30,000, divided into Tranche A (USD 15,000) and
Tranche B (USD 35,000). Both Tranche A and B were fully disbursed as at December 31, 2009 and
transferred to the Company under the scheme of demerger effective January 1, 2010. Howaver, the option
given to convert the Tranche A loan amount of USD 15,000 shall remain upon the Holding Company’s
ordinary shares at Rs. 205 per ordinary share (reduced to Rs. 11946 and Rs. 155.30 as at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 respectively consequent to bonus issues) calculated at the
dollar rupee exchange rate prevailing on ihe business day prior to the date of the notices issued by IFC to
exercise the conversion option. Such option is to be exercised within a period of no more than five years
from the date of disbursement of the loan (December 28, 2009). Tranche B, however, is not convertible. The
Holding Company, upen shareholders’ approval in the Annual General Meeting of February 27, 2010, has
entered into an agreement with the Company that in the event IFC exercises the aforementioned
conversion option {Tranche A}, the loan amount then outstanding against the Company would stand reduced
by the conversion cplion amount and the Company would pay the rupee equivalent of the corresponding
conversion amount to the Holding Company which would simultaneously be given to the Company as a
subordinated loan, carrying mark-up payable by the Holding Company for rupee finances of like maturities
plus a margin of 1%. The effect of [FC conversion in substance would result in a loan from the Holding
Company having the same repayment terms / dates as that of Tranche A.

On December 22, 2010, the Company and [FC entered into an amended agreement for further disbursement
of USD 30,000 over and above the aforementioned disbursed amount of USD 50,000. The amount was fully
disbursed as at June 30, 2011. The salient features of the Original Loan essentially remained the same. The
additional loan of USD 30,000 is divided into (I} 30% convertible loan on the shares of the Company at
Rs. 41.67 per ordinary share calculated at the dollar rupee exchange rate orevailing on the business day
prior to the date of the notices issued by [FC to exercise the conversion option and {ii) 70% non-convertible
loan, The additional loan is repayable by September 15, 2017 in three equal installments and carries interest
at six months LIBOR plus a spread of 6% or 10% depending on the listing status of the Company at
December 31, 2012. On December 22, 2010, the Company and IFC entered info an amended agreement for
further disbursement of USD 30,000 over and above the aforementioned disbursed amount of USD 50,000.
The amount was fully disbursed as at June 30, 2011. The salient features of the Original Loan essentially
remained the same. The additional loan of USD 30,000 is divided into (1) 30% convertible loan on the shares
of the Company at Rs. 41.67 per ordinary share calculated at the dollar rupee exchange rate prevailing on
the business day prior to the date of the nofices issued by IFC to exercise the conversion option and (i} 70%
non-convertible loan, The additional loan is repayable by September 15, 2017 in three equal instaliments
and carries interest at six months LIBOR plus a spread of 6% or 10% depending on the listing status of the
Company at December 31, 2012,

During the period, IFC has clarified its position that, if an agreement in the proposed amendments to the loan
conversion terms is not concluded by September 1, 2013 or if earier, by the Company's Initial Public Offer
date the relevant loan spread increase will occur automatically effective, at a mutually agreed date. The
exact terms and conditions of loan conversion are still under discussion with [FC, expected {o be finalized
shortly. The management is confident that it will be able to successfully negotiate the terms and hence no
related provision for the differential amount of Rs. 244,879 as at June 30, 2013 has been made in these
financial statements.

The fair value of the aforementioned conversion options, included in note 18, on the date of disbursement
amounted to Rs. 338,647 and Rs. 63,000 for the original and additional loan respectively and is being
amortised using effective interest method. The residual amount, representing the loan liability component is
shown as long term borrowings. The fair value of these oplions as at June 30, 2013 amounted to
Rs. 400,085 {December 31, 2012: Rs. 243,964).
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16.5

16.6

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

These represent secured and listed Term Finance Certificates {TFCs) of Rs. 4,000,000, The TFCs are
structured to redeem 0.28% of principal in the first 84 months and remaining 99.72% principal in two equal
semi-annual installments. First Dawood Islamic Bank is the trustee far these TFCs.

These represent secured and listed Term Finance Certificates {TFCs) of Rs. 2,000,000. The TFCs are
structured to redeem as follows:

Redemption
Y%hage

0.04%
0.04%
7.96%
7.96%
12%
12%
80%

Year

SO OGE RO e

IG! Investment Bank Limited is the trustee for these TFCs.

This represents Subordinated Privately Placed TFCs amounting to Rs. 4,000,000 (PPTFC lssue 1) and
Rs. 2,000,000 (PPTFC Issue Il) respectively. The PPTFCs are perpetual in nature with a five vear call and a
ten year put option. The PPTFC | issue has mark-up of six months KIBOR plus 1.7% whereas the
PPTFC |l issue has mark-up of six months KIBOR plus 1.25%. 1G! Investment Bank Limited is the trustee for
these TFCs. In 2011, the aforementioned TFCs have been listed on the Over-The-Counter (OTC) market of
the Karachi Sfock Exchange.

The above finances, excluding those covered in notes 16.4 and 16.7 are secured by an equitable mortgage
upon the immovable property of the Company and equitable charge over current and future fixed assets
axcluding immovable property of the Company. Loans from IFC are secured by a sub-ordinated mortgage
upon the immovable property of the Company and sub-ordinated charge over all present and future fixed
assets excluding immovable property of the Company. PPTFCs are secured by a subordinated floating
charge over all present and future fixed assets excluding land and buildings.

Further, the Holding Company has issued corporate guarantees in respect of above finances excluding
PPTFC whereas it has issued sub-ordinated corporate guaraniee in respect of PPTC,

In view of the substance of the transactions, the sale and repurchase of assets under long term finance have
not been recorded in these financial statements.

The Company approached majority of the lenders for re-profiling of various finance facilities given the
constrained operation dus to gas curtailment. Initially, the Company proposed for a grace period of 2 to 2.5
years in the existing repayment schedule. Subsequently the Company offered step-up payments in the
interim period of 2.5 years due to improved cash flow expectations after Enven conversion on Mari gas.

As at June 30, 2013, the Company has agreed with all the [enders for the re-profiling of iis long term loans.
Accordingly, current portion is based on the revised repayment schedule. Necessary documentation of DIB,
Citi Bank and DF! consortium is in process. Furthermore, the consortium representing Islamic Finance
Facility has agreed io convert 50% of the ouistanding [stamic facility from USD info PKR as referred to in
note 16.2., Principal terms of the re-profiling are as follows:

- Extension of loan tenor by 2.5 years with step up payments in the interim period;

- Amendment in financial covenants including a condition whereby dividend may be paid after repayment of
33% of the senior [oans ouistanding as at June 30, 2012;

- Implementation of cash sweep due to which all surplus cash over and above debt servicing, recurring
capex, aliernate gas capex and some pre-agreed cushion will be paid to lenders as prepayment of
outstanding loan amount following the restoration of gas supply applicable from December 31, 2014 and
until 25 % of the senior loans outstanding as at June 30, 2012 is repaid; and

- Gas supply from the long term allocation would start by July 2014,
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16.11

17

18

18,1

18.2

18.2.1

18.2.2

As at June 30, 2013, all financial debt covenants have béen complied with except for peak debt service
coverage ratio mentioned in the IFC loan for which the Company will approach for relaxation.

SUBORDINATED LOAN FROM HOLDING COMPANY - Unsecured

Represents subordinated loan obtained from the Holding Company for a period of five years. The entire
loan is payable on or before the end of the term, that is, September 14, 2015. The loan carries mark-up at
the rate of 17.1% (December 31, 2012: 17.1%).

PERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Audited Audited
June 30, 2013 December 31, 20142
Assefs Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Rupees
Conversion oplions on IFC loan
{note 16.4) - 400,085 - 243,864
Cash flow hedges
- Foreign exchange forward
contracts - net (note 18.1) 26,084 92,161 545 233,768
- Interest rate swaps (note 18.2) - 411,830 - 586,561
26,084 904,076 545 1,064,293
Less: Current portion shown under
current assets / liabilities
Cash flow hedges:
- Foreign exchange forward contracts 26,084 82,161 545 233,768
- Interest rate swaps - 268,774 - 332,656
26,084 360,935 545 566,424
- 543,141 - 497,869

Foreign exchange forward contracts

The Company entered in various USD : PKR forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency exposure. As
at June 30, 2013, the Company had forward contracis to purchase USD 188,843 {December 31, 2012:
USD 185,671) at various maturity dates to hedge its foreign currency exposure, primarily loan obligations.
The net fair value of these contracis as at June 30, 2013 is negative and amounted to Rs. 66,077
{(December 31, 2012: Rs. 233,223 negative).

Interest rate swaps

Tne Company entered inte an interest rate swap agreement to hedge its interest rate expasure on floating
rate committed borrowing under an Offshore Islamic Finance Facility agreement, for a notional amount of
USD 53,250 (December 31, 2012: USD 72,000} amortizing up to September 2014. Under the swap
agreement, the Company would receive USD-LIBOR from Citibank N.A Pakistan on notional amount and
pay fixed 3.47% which will be settled semi-annually. The fair value of the interest rate swap as at
June 30, 2013 is negative and amounted to Rs. 158,447 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 252,479 negative).

The Company entered into another interest rate swap agreement to hedge its interest rate exposure on
floating rate committed borrowing from a consortium of Development Finance Institutions for a notional
amount of USD 46,364 (December 31, 2012: USD 54,091) amortizing upte April 2016. Under the swap
agreement, the Company would receive USD-LIBOR from Standard Chartered Bank on notional amount
and pay fixed 3.73% which will be settled semi-annually. The fair value of the interest rate swap as at
June 30, 213 is negative and amounted to Rs. 252,383 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 334,082 negative).
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19

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

20

Audited Audited
DEFERRED LIABILITIES June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
------------------ RUpEES--rm-eereeans
Deferred taxation {note 19.1 and note 19.3) 2,734,764 3,295,995
Deferred income (note 18.4) 82,777 84,710
2,817 541 3,380,705
Deferred taxation
Credit balances arising on account of:
- Accelerated depreciation allowance 17,027,553 17,322,415
- Carried forward tax losses substantially -
pertaining to unabsorbed tax depreciation {12,221,530) {12,502,554)
- Carried forward minimum turn over tax {note 19.2) (360,413) (153,505)
- Fair values of hedging instruments {114,672) (174,397)
- Exchange loss {1,511,208) (1,168,631)
- Fair vaiue of IFC conversion option 531 55,189
- Provision for:
- retirement benefits (42,721) (48,529)
- slow moving stores and spares and
doubtful receivables (38,740) (29,838)
- Qthers (4,036) {4,155}
2,734,764 3,205,985

During the period, the High Court of Sindh, in respect of ancther company, has overturned the
interpretation of the Appellate Tribunal on Section 113 (2){¢) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and has
decided that the minimum turnover tax cannot be carried forward where there is no tax paid on account of
loss for the year. The Company's management is however of the view, duly supported by legal advisor,
that the above order is not correct and would not be maintained by Supreme Court which the Company
intends to approach, if required. Therefore, the Company has continued to carry forward minimum tax as
reflected above.

As at June 30, 2013, deferred tax asset / liability on the deductible / taxable temporary differences has
been recognised at the rate of 34% being the rate substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and is
expected to apply to the periods when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.

Deferred income

This represents an amount of Rs. 96,627 received from Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited, an associated
company for the right to use the Company's infrastructure facilities at Daharki Plant by the employees of
Engro Powergen Qacdirpur Limited for & period of twenty five years. The amount is being amortised over
such period.

Audited Audited
RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS OBLIGATIONS June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees

Service benefit obligation 128,757 138,653
{_ess: Current portion shown under

current liabilities 55,120 39,624

73,637 09,029

A



{Amounts in thousand)

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors {note 21.1)
Accrued liabilities (note 21.2)
Advances from customers
Sales tax payabla
Payable to:
- Engro Corporation Limited
- Engro Eximp (Private) Limited {note 21.3)
- Engro PowerGen Limited
Deposits from dealers refundabie on
termination of dealership
Contractors' deposits and retentions
Workers' profits participation fund (note 21.4)
Workers' welfare fund
Payable to Gratuity Fund (note 35.1.1)
Others

28

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees
3,032,841 1,848,012
972,262 693,450
799,115 3,756,249
452 8438 1,121,623
23,721 10,202
399,770 64,332
364 571
156,309 15,412
29,890 33,326
110,215 -
288,471 246,589
2,039 16,204
321,062 151,113
6,458,007 7,857 173

21.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 976,010 (December 31, 2012: Nil) on account of Gas Infrastruciure
Development Cess (G1DC) which has been stayad by courts,

21.2 Accrued liabilities

Salaries, wages and other employee benefits
Vacation accruals

Freight accruals

Others

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees
306,218 74,401
127,375 117,375
16,848 2,715
521,821 498,959
972,262 693,450

21.3  This includes amount of Rs. 118,997 (December 31, 2012; Rs. 53,839) due to Engro Eximp (Private)
Limited in respect of funds collected on their behalf by the Company under an agreement as a salling

agent of imported fertilizers.

214  Workers' profits participation fund

Payable at beginning of the pericd

Interest charged for the period (note 31)
Allocation for the period (note 30)

Less: Amount paid to the trustees of the fund
Payabte at end of the period

22 ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP

Accrued interest / mark-up on:
- long term borrowings
- short term borrowings

Audited Audited
June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
Rupees
- 49,328
- 1,000
110,215 -
- 50,326
110,215 -
1,544,695 1,728,746
68,958 58,636
1,613,653 1,788,282

A
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23

231

23.2

24

24.1

24.2

24.3

24.4

24.5

Audited Audited
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED June 30, December 31,
2013 2012
------------------ RUPBES-«amamnnmnmnans
Running Finance / Bank overdraft (note 23.1) - 209,791
Money market loans / Istisna (note 23.2) 500,000 780,000
500,000 999,791

The funded facilities for short term finances available from various banks and institutional investors
amounts to Rs. 5,250,000 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 5,250,000) along with non-funded facilities of
Rs. 1,275,000 (December 31, 2012; Rs. 1,275,000) for Bank Guarantees. The rates of markup on funded
bank overdraft facllities ranged from 10.53% to 12.01% and all the facilities are secured by floating charge
upon all present and future stocks including raw and packaging materials, finished goods, stores and
spares and other merchandise and on all present and future book debts, outstanding menies, receivable
claims and bills of the Company.

The Company, during the period paid off the amount outstanding as at December 31, 2012 and acquired
additional funds amounting to Rs. 500,000 of which no repayment has been made before June 30, 2013,
Cutstanding loan carries mark-up rates at 11.17% ( December 31, 2012: 10.89%) per annum.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

Bank guarantees of Rs.1,059,119 (December 31, 2012; Rs, 1,052,364) have been issued in favour of third
parties.

Claims, including pending lawsuits, against the Company not acknowledged as debis amounied to
Rs. 58,530 (December 31, 2012: Rs. 58,530).

The Company is contesting a penalty of Rs. 99,936 paid and expensed in 1997, imposed by the State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP) for alleged late payment of foreign exchange risk cover fee on long term loans and
has filed a suit in the High Court of Sindh. A pariial refund of Rs. 62,618 was, however, recovered in 1999
from SBP and the recovery of the balance amount is dependent on the Court's decision.

The Holding Company had commenced {wo separate arbitration proceedings against the Government of
Pakistan for non-payment of marketing incidentals relating tc the years 1983-84 and 1985-86 respectively.
The sole arbitrator in the second case has awarded the Holding Company Rs. 47,800 whergas the award
for the earlier years is awaited. The award for the second arbitration has not been recognised due to
inherent uncertainties arising from its challenge in the High Court of Sindh.

The Company had filed a constitutional petition in the High Court of Sindh, Karachi against the Ministry of
Petroleum and Natural Resource (MPNR), Ministry of Industries and Production {MIP) and Sui Northern
Gas Pipeline Company Limited {SNGPL) for continuous supply of 100 MMSCFD gas per day to the Enven
Plant and to prohibit them from suspending, discontinuing or curtailing the aforesaid supply. The High
Court of Sindh, in its order dated Cctober 18, 2011, has ordered that SNGPL should supply 100 MMSCFD
of gas per day to the Company's new plant. However, five petitions have been filed in the Supreme Court
of Pakistan against the aforementioned order of High Court of Sindh by SNGPL, MPNR, Agritech Limited,
Pak Arab Fertilizers and Kohinoor Mills Limited along with 21 other companies (mainly engaged in textile
business). The aforementioned petitions are pending for further hearing. The Company’s management as
confirmed by the legal advisor considers the chances of petitions being allowed to be remote.
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24.8

24.7

24.8

24.9

Further, the Company upon continual curtailment of gas after the aforementioned decision of the High
Court has filed an application in respect of Contempt of Court under Article 198 & 204 of the Constitution
of Pakistan. The Company, in the aforementioned application has submitted that SNGPL and MPNR has
falled to restore full supply of gas to the Company's plant despite the judgment of High Court in the
Company’s favor. A show cause notice has also been issued against MPNR and SNGPL dated
December 31, 2011 by the High Court. The application is pending for hearing and no orders have yet been
passed in this regard.

All Pakistan Textile Processing Mills Association (APTPMA), Shan Dying & Printing Indusiries {Private)
Limiied, Agritech Limited (Agritech) and 27 others have each contended, through separate proceedings
filed before the Lahore High Court that the supply to the Company's expansion plant is premised on the
output of Qadirpur gas field exceeding 500 MMSCFD by 100 MMSCFD and the Gas Sale and Purchase
Agreement (GSA) dated April 11, 2007 with Sui Northern Gas Pipe Line Limited {SNGPL) be declared void
ab initic because the output of Qadirpur has infact decreased. Agritech has additionally zlleged
discrimination in that it is recelving less gas than the other fertilizer companies on the SNGPL system. The
Company has out rightly rejected these contentions, and is of the view that it has a strong case for the
reasons that {i) 100 MMSCFD gas has been &llocated to the Company through a transparent international
competitive bidding process held by the Government of Pakistan, and upon payment of valuable license
fee; {ii) GSA which guarantees uninterrupied supply of gas to the expansion plant, with right to first 100
MMSCFD gas production from the Qadirpur field; and (iii) both the Company and gas field (Qadirpur), that
is to initially supply gas to the Company, are in Sindh. Also, neither the gas allocation by Government nor
the GSA predicates the gas supply upon Qadirpur field producing 100 MMSCFD over and above 500
MMS3CFD. No orders have been passed in this regard and the petitions have been adjourned sine die.
However, the Company’s management, as coniirmed by the legal adviscr, considers the chances of the
netitions beina allowed to be remote.

The Company, along with other fertilizer Companies, received a show cause notice from the Competition
Commission of Pakistan (CCP) for initiating action under the Competition Act 2010 in relation to
unreasonable increase in the price of fertilizer. The Company responded in detail that factors resuiting in
such increase were mainly the imposition of Infrastructure cess, sales tax, inflation and gas curtailment.
However, the CCF has issued an order in March 2013, whereby it has held that the Company enjoys a
dominant position in the urea market and that it has abused this position by unreasonable increases of urea
prices in the period from December 2010 to December 2011. The CCP has also held another feriilizer
company to be responsible for abusing its dominant position. In addition, the CCP has imposed a penalty
of Rs 3,140,000 and Rs 5,500,000 on the Company and that other fertilizer company respectively. The
Company has challenged the decision in the High Court of Sindh which has stayed enforcemert of the
penally. The Company has also filed an appeal before the Competition Appellate Tribunal, which is
presently pending. The Company's management believes that the chances of ultimate success are very
good, which has been confirmed by legal advisor. Hence, no provision has been made in these financial
statements,

The Campany (along-with other fertilizer companies) has filed a writ in the Lahore High Court challenging
the revised arder of priority for supply of natural gas by the Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Resources
under the Gas Management Policy 2013. Under the revised priority, the fertilizer sector has been put below
the power sector and at par with general industry. The Petition seeks to ensure, inter alia, priority supply of
Gas to the fertilizer industry over the CNG sector, and equal treatment with general industry, without
prejudice to its challenge to the revised priority.

During the period , the Company has filed :

- awrit in the Lahore High Court seeking fair distribution of the agreed upon rota of gas supply between
the 4 fertilizer plants on the SNGPL network . The Company has also prayed for making up the short
falls in iis 2012 rota share; and

- a suit against the Government of Pakistan and SNGPL in the Lahore High Court for the recovery of
damages incurred as a result of SNGPL suspending/ curtailing gas supply o the Company amounting
to Rs. 61,410,000, This would be recognized as income upon realisation thereof,

A
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24.10 Commitments

Plant and machinery (note 24.10.1)

------------------

Audited
June 30,
2013

963,960

Audited

December 31,

2012

70,134

24,101 As referred to in note 1.3, consequent to the aliocation of gas from dedicated fields and as per the terms of
Gas Transportation Agreements, the Consortium s required to build the additional gas infrastructure at an
estimated cost of USD 115,000, The Company's share in this cost is estimated at USD 48,000.

25 NET SALES

Own manufactured product (note 25.1)
Less: Sales tax

25.1 Sales are net of marketing allowances of Rs. 23,438 (June 30, 2012: Rs. 15,148)

26 COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed

Salaries, wages and staff welfare {note 26.1)

Fuel and power

Repairs and maintenance

Depreciation (note 4.2)

Amortisation (note 5.1)

Consumable stores

Staif recruitment, training, safety
and other expenses

Purchased services

Travel

Communication, stationery and
other office expenses

Insurance

Rent, rates and taxes

Other expenses

Cost of goods manufactured

Add: Opening stock of finished goods manufactured
Less: Closing stock of finished goods manufactured

Cost of sales

Audited Unaudifed
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupees
23,781,175 14,848,630
3,261,870 2,045,166
20,519,305 12,804,464
Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupees
6,038,486 4,527,581
818,968 705,268
1,675,313 1,965,231
293,988 202,028
2,392,431 2,478,746
17,081 7,687
153,060 126,895
44 585 39,558
135,469 133,168
21,277 25,175
9,043 19,031
146,565 127,681
2,842 1,724
551 3990
11,750,590 10,360,765
631,007 739,419
345,331 2,804,296
285,676 (2,0684,877)
12,036,266 8,295,888

26.1 Salaries, wages and staff welfare includes Rs. 41,005 (June 30, 2012: Rs. 45,513) in respect of staff

retirement benefits.
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27

27.1

28

28.1

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Sataries, wages and staff welfare (note 27.1)
Staif recruitment, training, safety

and other expenses
Product transportation and handling
Royalty expense
Repairs and maintenance
Advertising and sales promotion
Rent, rates and taxes
Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Travel
Depreciation {note 4.2)
Amortisation {note 5.1)
Purchased services
Insurance
Other expenses

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
---------------- Rupees--r-sr-—sa-rnam
201,941 161,481
12,834 26,541
855,206 532,308
312,844 182,340
1,668 2,947
16,578 19,849
35,223 57,813
7,177 8,637
21,082 20,243
13,133 15,336
24 24
1,674 2,444
4,799 5,738
1,644 15,2582
1,483,827 1,050,881

Salaries, wages and staff welfare includes Rs. 13,963 (June 30, 2012: Rs. 12,361) in respect of staff

retirement benefiis.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and staff welfare (note 28.1)

Staff recruitment, training, safety and other expenses
Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Communication, stationery and other office expenses
Travel

Depreciation (note 4.2)

Amortisation (note 5.1)

Purchased services

Donations

Insurance

Other expenses

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
------------------ Rupees——-r=e-a=mean--m
130,962 128,775
5777 8,549
3,032 3,667
22,189 27,632
14,647 5,118
6,832 5,864
12,876 16,437
416 6,153
88,094 61,591
10,662 12,808
1,680 1,304
4,341 15,811
301,508 291,809

Salaries, wages and staff welfare includes Rs. 9,776 (June 30,2012: Rs. 12,543) in respect of staff

retirement benefits.
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29

28.1

30

30.1

OTHER INCOME

On financial assets
Income on depasits, treasury bills and term deposit certificates
Income on mutual funds

On non-financial assets

Commission income (note 29.1)

Gain on disposal of properiy, plant and equipment {note 4.3)
Rental income

Gain on disposal of spares / scrap

Others

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupesgs
171,488 29,260
37,510 53,984
60,139 35,997
- 3,778
1,877 1,797
18,129 28,256
1,862 10,068
82,107 79,884
281,105 163,138

Represents commission earned as selling agent of imported fertilizer on behalf of Engro Eximp (Private)

Limited, an associated undertaking, under an amended agreement effective January 1, 2011.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Workers' profits participation fund (note 21.4)

Workers' welfare fund

Research and development (including salaries and wages)
Net foreign exchange loss

Auditors’ remuneration {note 30.1)

Legal and professional charges

LLoss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (note 4.3)
Loss on fair value adjustments of embedded derivative
Others

Auditors’ remuneration

Fee for:

- special audit / review of half yearly financial statements
- certifications, audit of retirement funds and
other advisory services

- reimbursement of expenses

Audited Urnaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupees
110,215 -
41,882 -
31,198 14,689
2,611 464
32,610 21,030
13.359 -
156,121 71,353
23,706 2,593
411,702 110,129
1,500 195
881 189
230 80
2,611 484

I
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32

32.1

32.2

32.3

Audited Unaudited
Half year Haif year
FINANCE COST ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupees
Interest / mark-up on:
- long term borrowings 3,346,279 4,036,819
- short term borrowings 72,843 296,899
- net foreign exchange loss 1,105,783 1,228,156
- workers' profits participation fund (note 21.4) - 1,000
4,524,905 5,662,874
TAXATION
Current
- for the period (note 32.1) 218,770 70,044
- for prior years {note 32.2) 1,032,087 -
1,248,857 70,044
Deferred
- for the period 410,075 (682,673)
- for prior years (note 32.2) {1,032,087) -
(622,012) (682,673)
626,845 (612,629)

Includes minimum turnover tax amounting to Rs.206,808 {June 30, 2012; Rs. 70,044).

A prior year incremental current tax charge of Rs. 1,032,087 has been recognized in these f{inancial
statements consequent to the disallowance of initial allowance claimed in the financial year 2010. Further,
the prior year deferred tax charge represents adjustment resulting from the aforementioned disallowance of
accelerated depreciation.

As a result of demerger, all pending fax issues of the Holding Company had been transferred io the
Company. Major issues pending before the tax authorities are described below:

In 2012, the income tax departmeni raised a demand of Rs. 1,481,709, subsequently rectified to
Rs. 1,074,838, for the financial vear 2010. The disallowances were mainly on account of initial allowance
on capitalization which were later confirmed by the Commissioner Inland Revenue-Appeals {CIRA). The
demand was subsequently reduced to Rs. 616,536 after application of recifications from prior years
amounting to Rs. 308,402 and payment of Rs, 150,000.

In the current period, the Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has remanded back the issues of
Group Relief (Rs. 450,000) and Inter-Corporate Dividend (Rs. 220,000) related to the financial year 2008 in
favour of the Company. The Company intends to use the resulting refunds in offsetting the balance
demand of the financial year 2010,

In previous vears, the department had filed reference applications in High Court against the below-
mentioned ATIR's decisions in Company's favor, No hearing has been conducted to-date. The reference
application includes the following matters:

+ Group Rellef (Financial year 2006 and 2007}): Rs. 1,050,847
* Inter-Corporate Dividend (Financial year 2007): Rs. 116,500
* G.P. Apporticnment (Financial years 1995 to 2002): Rs. 653,000

The Company is confident that all pending issues will eventually be decided in its favor.
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32.4 Relationship befween tax expense and accounting profit

The tax on the Company's profit / (loss) before tax differs from the theorstical amount that would arise
using the Company's applicable tax rate as follows:

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
.................. RUpPEEGmammrmmmunanne
Profit / (loss) before taxation 2,052,202 (2,343,979}
Tax calculated at the rate of 34% (2012: 35%) 697,749 (820,393)
Depreciztion on exempt assets not deductible
for tax purposes 16,755 19,847
Effect of exemption from tax on certain income 10,403 (26,247)
Effect of applicability of lower tax rate and other tax
crediis / debits {24,010) 23,358
Effect of reduced tax rate in current period (74,052) -
Prior year tax effecis - 190,706
Tax charge / (credit) for the period 626,845 {612,629)

33 EARNINGS f (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings / {loss) per share has been calculated by dividing the profit / (loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the pericd,

33.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company since the average annual
market price {estimated) of the Company's share for the current period is less than the exercise price of the
options granted on the Company's shares to IFC as referred to in note 16.4.

The information necessary to calculate basic and diluted earnings / {loss) per share is as follows:

Unaudited Unaudited Audited Unaudited
guarter guarter Half year Half year
ended ended ended ended

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees
Profit / (Loss) for the period 779,038 (311,198) 1,425,357 (1,731,350}
Add: Interest on IFC loan of USD 8,000 - ret of tax (note 33.1) - - - .
Profit / (Loss) used for the determination of Diluted EPS 779,038 {311,198) 1,425 357 {1,731,350)

Numbers (in thousands)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at ihe

beginning of percd 1.072,800 1,072,800 1.072,800 1,072,800

Adjustment of Bonus factor in dght issue 59,142 61.861 50,484 61,861
Add : Weighted awerage adjustments for:

Shares issued during the period 6,593 - 3,315 -
Weighted average number of shares for

determination of basic EPS 1,138,535 1,134,661 1,136,608 1,134,661

Weighted average number of shares for
determination of diluted EPS 1,138,535 1,134,661 1,136,609 1,134,661
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36

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statementis for remuneration, including all benefits, to
chief executive, directors and executives of the Company are given below:

Audited Unaudited
Half year ended June 30,2013 Half year ended June 30,2012
Directors Executives Directors Executives
Chief Others Chief Others
Executive Executive
Rupees Rupees

Managerial remuneration 11,203 - 502,850 12,410 - 438,639
Retirement benefls funds 1,822 - 64,075 2,988 - 58,163
Other benefits 131 - 30,729 258 - 34,118
Fees - 1,000 - - 1,300 -
Total 13,156 1,000 ' 597,654 15,656 1,300 530,520
Number of persons

including those who

worked part of the year 1 9 423 2 9 394

The Company also makes coriributions based on actuarial calculations to pension and gratuity funds
and provides certain household items for use of some employees. Cars are also provided for use of

some employees and direciors.

Premium charged in the financial statements in respect of direstors' indemnity insurance policy,
purchased by the Company during the period, amounted to Rs. 665 {(June 30, 2012: Rs. 885).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined benefit plans

The latest actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plans was carried cut as at December 31, 2012,
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Details of the defined benefit plans are as follows:

A
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35.1.1

35.1.2

35.1.21

35.1.3

Balance sheet reconciliation
Defined Benefit
Pension Plan Funded
(Curtailed)

Defined Benefit Gratuity
Plans Funded

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees

Present value of funded obligation 243,815 239,377 31,221 31,289
Fair value of plan assets (241,776} (237,281)  (39,279) (38,313}
Deficit / {Surplus}) 2,038 2,096 (8,058} (7.024)
Payable to associated companies - 12 - -
Unrecognised actuarial {loss) / gain - (5,000) - 1,800
Payable to DC Gratuity Fund - 15,272 - -
Unrecognised past service cost - 3,914 - -
Unrecagnized asset - - 8,058 3,424
Net liabifity / (asset} at end of the period f year 2,039 16,294 - (1,800)
Movement in net (asset)} / liability recognised
Net liability / (asset) et beginning of the period / year 16,294 4,740 {1,800} (4,529}
Expense ! {reversal} recognised 1,157 17,288 (422} (625)
Armounts paid to the Fund (10,084} (5,734) - -
Remeasurements charged to OCI (note 35.1.2.1} (5,328} - (612) -
Unrecognized asset charged to OC] (note 35.1.2.1) - - 2,834 3,424
Net fiability / (asset) at end of the period / year 2,039 16,294 - (1,800)

Includes losses amounting to Rs. 6,800 arising in prior years on account of remeasurements recongnised in the current
period as disclosed in note 2.18.2 .

Defined Benefit
Pension Plan Funded
{Curtailed)

Defined Benefit Gratuity
Plans Funded

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees

Movement in defined benefit obligation
As at beginning of the period / year 239,377 277,645 31,289 32,023
Current service cost 5,752 13,657 - -
Interest cost 13,790 33,866 1,769 3,777
Benefits paid during the period / year (15,104) (21,055) - (3,608)
Actuarial {gain} f loss on obligation - (1,080} - (903)
Liability transferred in respect of inter-company

transfer - (3) - -
Liability transferred to DC Gratuity Fund - {63,653) - -
Actual distribufion during the period / year (1,837)
As at end of the pericd f year 243,815 239,377 31,221 31,288
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35.1.4

35.1.5

35.1.6

35.1.7

35.1.8

35.1.9

Movement in fair value of plan asseis

At beginning of the period / year

Expected return on plan assets

Contribution by the Company

Benefits paid during the period / year

Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assels

Assets transferred in respect of transfers

Assets transferred to DC Gratuity Fund

Liability transferred in respect of inter-company
transfer

As at end of ihe period / year

Charge / (Reversal) for the period

Current service cost

Net Interest cost

Recegnition of past service cost

Amortisation of unrecognized past service cost
Amaortisation of actuarial gain

Actual return on plan assets

Principal actuarial assumptions used in
the actuarial valuation

Discount rate

Expected per annum rate of return
on plan assets

Expected per annum rate of increase
in pension

Expected per annum rate of increase in
future salarles

Plan assets comprise of the following
Fixed income instruments

Cash
Others

38

Defined Benefit Gratuity
Plans Funded

Defined Benefit
Pension Plan Funded

(Curtailed)
June 30, December 31, June 30, Becember 31,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees
237,281 256,976 38,313 37,023
14,471 31,818 2,191 4,402
10,084 5,734 - -
{15,104) {21,055) (1,837) (3,608)
10,328 14,834 612 495
" g - _
- {50,835) - -
(15,284) - -
241,776 237,281 39,279 38,313
5,752 13,657 - -
(681) 2,248 {422) {625)
(3.914) - - -
- (339) - -
- 1,722 - -
1,157 17,288 {422) {625)
24,799 46,452 2,803 4,898

Defined Benefit Gratuity
Plans Funded

June 30,
2013

12.0%

12.0%

11.0%

Rupees

188,458
18,532

34,786

241,776

December 31,
2012

12.0%

12.0%

11.0%

2013
(%)

78%
8%
14%

Defined Benefit Pension
Plan Funded (Curtailed)

June 30,
2013

12.0%

12.0%

4.0%

11.0%

Rupees

36,438

2,841

39,279

December 31,
2012

12.0%
12.0%
4.0%

11.0%

2013
{%)

93%
0%
%

The expected refurn on plan assets was determined by considering the expected returns available on the
assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected vields on fixed interest investments are based on
gross redemption yields as at the balance sheet date.
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35.1.10 Expected future cost / (reversal) for the year ending December 31, 2013 is as folows:

35.1.11 Historical information of staff retirement benefits:

35.2

36

- MPT Pension Fund
- MPT Gratuity Fund
- Non-MPT Gratuity Fund

Rupeas

(843)
(753)

10,885

June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010
Rupees:
Pension Plan Funded
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 31,2219 31,288 32,023 31,230
Fair value cf plan assets {38,279) (38.313) (37,023) (34,855)
Deficit / (Sumplus) {8,058) (7,024) (5,000) {3,625)
Gratuity Plans Funded
Present value of defined
beneifit obligation 243,815 239,377 277,645 269,523
Fair value of plan assets (241,776) (237,281) (256,976) (289,580)
Deficit / {Surplus) 2,039 2,098 20,669 {20,057)

Defined confribution plans

An amount of Rs. 25,641 has been charged during the period in respect of defined contribution plans

maintained by the Holding Company.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit / {L.oss) before taxation

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Provision for retirement and other service benefits

Income on deposits / other financial assets

Financial cost

Reversal on Employee share compensation

Provision / {reversal) for surplus and slow moving
stores and spares

Provision against trade receivables

Provision against loans and advances

Change in the fair value of IFC conversion option

Working capital changes {note 36.1)

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Rupees
2,052,202 (2,343,979)
2,579,395 2,510,518
15,588 11,943
- {3,776)
13,359 -
23,766 25,681
(208,998) {83,244)
4,524,905 5,662,874
- (1,471)
9,693 {6,477)
19,000 -
4,258 -
156,121 71,353
{1,599,802) {2,038,397)
7,589,487 3,708,025

4
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36.1 Working capital changes

37

38

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

- Stores, spares and loose tools

- Stock-in-trade

- Trade debts

- Loans, advances, deposits and prepayments
- Other receivables (net)

Increase in current liabilities
- Trade and other payables

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Short term investments
Short term borrowings

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets as per balance sheet
- Loans and receivablas

Loans, advances and deposits
Trade debts

QOther receivables

Cash and bank balances
Short ferm Investment

- Fair value through profit and loss

Short term investments
Derivative financial instruments

- Held to maturity
Short term investments

Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

40

- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Borrowings
Trade and other payable
Accrued interest / mark-up

- Fair value through profit and |oss

Conversion option on IFC loan
Derivative financial instruments

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
---------------- Rupees--se---srmusannn
{152,057) 32,646
{152,561) {2,130,335)
144,283 {1,219,503)
159,515 865,829
31,070 83,235
30,250 (2,368,128)
(1,630,052) 329,731
{1,599,802) (2,038,387)
2,609,454 647,363
4,824,661 3,039,433
(500,000) (3,543,542)
6,934,115 143,254
160,484 109,215
582,808 1,046,001
37,143 586,254
2,609,454 2,449,168
- 1,088,681
3,689,889 4,749,409
61,881 1,052,148
26,084 545
87,965 1,052,693
4,762,780 484,510
65,709,038 67,377,828
3,792,407 2,464,773
1,613,653 1,788,282
71,115,088 71,630,884
400,085 243,964
503,991 820,329
204,076 1,084,293

A
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39

39.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it {o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program
focuses on having cost efficient funding as well as to manage financial risk to minimize earnings volatility
and provide maximum return t¢ shareholders.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's Finance and Planning department under policies
approved by the Management Commiitee.

a} Market risk

i)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

This exists due to the Company's exposure resulting from outstanding import payments, foreign
currency loan liabilities and related interest payments. A foreign exchange risk management policy
has been developed and approved by the management, The policy allows the Company fo take
currency exposure for limited periods within predefined limits while open exposures are rigorously
monitored. The Company ensures to the extent possible that it has opticns available to manage
exposure, either through forward confracts, options or prepayments, eic. subject o the prevailing
foreign exchange regulations.

On foreign currency borrowing of USD 226,943 as on June 30, 2013, the Company has
Rupee / USD hedge of USD 179,614.

At June 30, 2013, if the currency had weakened / strengihened by 1% against the US dollar with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the period would have been Rs. 28,577 lower / higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange loss / gain on transiation of US doltar denominated loans.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from
short and long-term borrowings. These are benchmarked to variable rates which expose the Company
to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Company analyses its interest rate exposure on a regular basis by monitoring interest rate trends
to determine whether they should enter into hedging alternatives,

The Company has entered into Interest Rate Swaps for USD 99,614 out of its non-current foreign
currency borrowings of USD 226,943 as on June 30, 2013 {note 18). Rales on short term loans vary
as per market movement.

As at June 30, 2013, if interest rates on Company’s borrowings had heen 1% higher / lower with all
other variables held constant, post tax profit for the period would have been lower / higher by Rs.
167,544 mainly as a result of interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.
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iit) Other price risk

Cther price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors effecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. As at June 30, 2013,
the Company is not exposed to price risk .

b} Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parly fails to discharge an
obligation.

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, advances,
deposits, bank guarantees and other receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counter parties are banks with a reasonably high credit rating or mutuat funds which in turn are deposited
in banks and government securities. The Company maintains an internal policy to place funds with
commercial banks and mutual funds of asset management companies having a minimum short term
credit rating of A1 and AM3 respectively. However, the Company maintains operational balances with
certain banks of lower rating for the purpose of effective collection of bank guaraniees and fo cater to
loan disbursements.

The Company is expoesed {o a concentration of credit risk on its trade debts by virlue of all its customers
being agri-based businesses in Pakistan. However, this risk is mitigated by applying individual credit
limits and by securing the majority of trade debts against bank guarantees and inland letter of credit.

The credit risk arising on account of acceptance of these bank guarantees is managed by ensuring that
the bank guarantees are issued by banks of reasonably high credit ratings as approved by the
management.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of
such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither
past due nor impaired are as under:

June 30, December 31,

2013 2012

Rupees

Loans, advances and depaosits 160,484 109,215
Trade debis 829,665 952,164
Other receivables 28,696 50,316
s Short term investments 4,824,661 2,635,339
Cash and bank balances 2,609,454 2,449,168
8,452,960 6,196,202

A
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The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference fo their historical performance with no or
negligible defaults in recent history, however, no losses incurred. The credit quality of Company's bank
balances and short term investments can be assessed with reference fo external credit ratings as follows:

Rating Rating
agency Short term Long term
Allied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited PACRA Al A
The Bank Of Punjab PACRA Al+ Ah-
Barclays Bank PLC MOODY'S A-1 A
Burj Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1 A
Citi Bank .N.A. MCODY'S P-2 A3
Deutche Bank AG MCODY'S P-1 A2
Dubai Islamic Bank (Pakistan) Limited JCR-VIS A-1 A
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1+ AAA
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited MOODY'S 21 Aa3d
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al A
KASB Bank Limited PACRA A3 BBB
MCB Bank Limited PACRA At+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ AA
National Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS A1+ AAA
Samba Bank Limited JCR-VIS A1 AA-
Silk Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-2 A-
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Summit Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-2 A-
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS A-1+ A+
Zarsi Taraqgiati Bank Limited JCR-VIS A+ AAA

¢} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficuities in meeting obligations
assaciated with financial liahilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of commiited credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature
of the business, the Company maintains flexibilily in funding by maintaining committed credit lines
available,

The Company's {iquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid
assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external
regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

oAfr
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39.2

39.3

The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date {o contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Audited Audited
Half year June 30,2013 Year ended December 31,2012
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
upto after Total upto after Total
one year one year ene year one year
Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities
Derivatives 360,935 543,141 904,075 566,424 497,869 1,084,293
Trade and other payables 3,792,407 - 3,792,407 2,464,773 - 2,464,773
Accrued interest / mark-up 1,613,653 - 1,613,653 1,768,282 - 1,788,282
Borrowings 7,944,858 57,764,180 65,709,038 15,896,203 51,481,626 67,377,829
13,711,853 58,307,321 72,018,174 20,715,682 51,979,495 72695177

Capital risk management

The Company's objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to coniinue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for share holders and benefit for other stake holders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares.

The total long term borrowings to equity ratio as at June 30, 2013 based on total long term borrowings of Rs.
65,209,038 and total equity of Rs. 18,826,714 was 77.6 : 22.4

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view o maintaining an appropriate mix befween various sources of finance to minimise risk.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried &t fair value by vatuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

- Quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices) {level 2)

- [nputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market data (level 3)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
Asseis
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
- Short term investments - 61,881 - 61,881
- Derijvative financial instruments - 26,084 - 26,084
- 87,965 - 87,965
Liabilities
Derivatives
- Derivative financial instruments - 503,991 - 503,981
- Conversion option on |FC loans - 400,085 - 400,085
- 904,076 - 804,076
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39.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrving velue of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their
fair values.

40  TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprises of Holding Company, associated companies and other companies with cormmon
director, retirement benefits funds, directors and key management personnel.

Details of transactions with related parties during the period, other than those which have been disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

Audited Unaudited
Half year Half year
ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
------------------ Rupees-smummmmmmmnn,

Holding Company
Purchases and services 85,855 108,687
Services provided to Holding Company 8,052 8,711
Royalty 288,169 201,065
Reimbursements 77,480 46,666
Mark-up paid on Long term subordinated loan 254,392 255,797
Mark-up paid on Short term subordinated loan - 18,810
Receipt of issued right shares 1,500,000 -
Receipt of subordinated loan - 1,000,000
Payment of subordinated loan - 1,000,000
Associated companies
Purchases and services 553,063 992,360
Confributions to retirement benefit schemes / funds 96,832 75,308
Services provided 34,423 43,957
Reimbursements 103,428 95,429
Funds collected against sales made on behalf of an associate 6,258,284 5,695,774
Payment of mark-up on TFCs and repayment of principal amount 10,4489 104,092
Purchase of T-Bili 4,067,897 -
Sale of T-Bill 4,161,893 487,621
Income on T-Bill 40,864 -
Commission on sales coliection 60,139 35,997
Purchase of mutual fund uniis 780,000 400,000
Redemption of mutual fund units 781,195 588,577
Donztlon to Engro Foundation 9,000 13,519
Cammission expense 17,849 7,453
Markup from associate - 26,685
Use of Assets 6,469 7,424
Receipt of subordinated loan - 1,500,000
Payment of subordinated lcan - 1,500,000
Others
Remuneration of key management personnel 61,281 50,627

(o]
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CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding figures and balances have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary, for the
purpose of comparison, the effects of which are not material.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

24 2013

/‘
These financial statements were authorised for issue on ’Jt"%f by the Board of Directors of the

Company.

lg D 15 A g

Chief Executive Director
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Donations include the following in which a director or ex-director or his spouse is interested:

Interest Name and Audited Unaudited
in Donee address Half year Haif year
of Donee ended ended
June 30, June 30,
2013 2012
Asad Umar (ex-director) and President and  Engro Foundation - 10,000
Khalid Siraj Subhani {ex-director) Trustee
Aliuddin Ansari and President and Engro Foundation 9,000 -

Ruhail Mochammed

Trustee

PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Designed capacity Actual production
Metric Tons Metric Tons
Half year ended Half year ended
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012

Urea plant | & I 1,137,500 1,137,500 617,179 521,027
NPK piant 50,000 50,000 50,130 26,342

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at Average number of employees

June 30, June 340, June 30, June 30,
2013 2012 2013 2012
Management employees 447 513 487 493
Non- management employees 674 721 77 736
1,121 1,234 1,204 1,229

SEASONALITY

The Company's fertilizer business is subject to seasonal fluctuations as a result of two different farming seasons
viz, Rabi (from October to March) and Kharif (from April to September). On an average fertilizer sales are more
tilted towards Rabi season. The Company manages seasonality in the business through appropriate inventory
management.

LOSS OF CERTAIN ACCOUNTING RECORDS

During 2007, a fire broke out at PNSC Building, Karachi where the Holding Company's registered office was
located. Immediately following this event the Holding Company faunched its Disaster Recovery Plan due fo
which operational disruption and financial impact resulting from this incident remained minimal.

The fire destroyed a substantial portion of its hard copy records, including that of Fertilizer Undertaking
(note 1.2), related to the financial years 2005, 2006 and the period January 1, 2007 to August 18, 2007
although, electronic data remained intact due fo the aforementioned Disaster Recovery Plan. The Holding
Company launched an initiative to recreate significant lost records and was successful in gathering the same in
respect of the financial year 2007. Hard copy records related to the financial years 2005 and 2006 have not
been recreated.



